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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The site of Fort Conde-Charlotte is now partially covered
with sub-standard wooden residential structures imboarded
by several structures of historic and architectural significance,
located in the outer portion of the Church Street Historic
District. Preliminary reports of archaeological investigations
of the area, conducted by the Department of Anthropology,
University of Alabama, reveal that the site abounds in
artifacts and contains approximately one third of the
fort's outer walls.

The masonry fort, built in 1717,)measured approximately
300 feet from tip to tip of the bastions. . The principal part of the
fort was 240 feet both in length and width. Archaeological investigatjons
show that the foundation of the fort was of a three foot deep
footing of burnt shell mortar and sandstone rocks leveling off with
brick scraps. The walls of the fort were laid brick placed on this
level footing. The entrance into the fort proper was constructed
on the northern side. The following physical description of the
fort is contained in Colonial Mobile:

33§

Crossing the moat (about the rear of the modern jail
on Church Street), one entered through the brick scarp wall.
This wall was about sixteen feet from the bottom to the
cordon, above which rose a think brick parapet four and a
half feet high. 1In the curtains of three fronts at least
were brick casemates for cannon. Passing between two buildings,
one of which was the officers' quarters and one the station
of the guard, the visitor came to an open square, probably
with staff in the centre floating the lilies of France,--the
yard now of the city street department. On the east and
west of this parade were two long one-story barracks for
about two hundred and sixteen men, but the warehouse of
Dumont's time was now up town. On the south side of the
parade were two wells. Walking by the bristling cannon standihg
upon wooden platforms, one would notice at the northwestern
and southeastern corners entrances to two subterranean
rooms in these bastions. The first was a brick bakehouse and
the other the powder magazine, while at the northeast corner
was some outhouse on Royal Street, near the present Armory.
From the eastern parapet one would look out on the single
wharf of the city, narrow in part across the miry bank of the
river, but wider towards the eastern end. Where it reached
the river (near the present Water Street) were boats at
anchor, a hundred yards from the fort but under its guns.
From the ramparts on the other sides lay in full view the
bark or tiled houses of Mobile.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (Include Personages, Dates, Ewants, Etc.)

Built with brick in 1717, the French Fort Conde was the first
masonry fort constructed by white men on the Gulf Coast. Later called
Fort Charlotte, this fort was the center of military, commercial, and
governmental activities of the French, British, and Spanish empires in
the Gulf of Mexico area for about 100 years.

Bienville built a wooden stockade on this site in 1711 known
as Fort Louis de la Mobile which was rebuilt with brick in 1717 and
named Fort Conde in 1720. The Treaty of Paris, February 10, 1763, made
West Florida, including the fort, a British possession. Major Robert
Farmer was placed in command of the Mobile district. The fort was
renamed Fort Charlotte in compliment to the young queen of England. /
Interest in Fort Charlotte wa,ned for a number of years until March
1771, when the garrison underwent many changes. / Don Bernadode Galvez,
the Governor of Spanish Louisiana, attacked Mobile in 1780 and laid seige
to the fort which was commanded by Lt. Governor Elias Durnford.
Captain Durnford and his small garrison vigorously defended the fort
but his troops were finally overwhelmed by the Spanish on March 14,
1780. Spanish success at Ft. Charlotte laid the foundation for awarding
the Floridas to Spain by the Treaty of Paris of 1783. Under Spanish
rule the fort continued to be called Charlotte (Carlota)./

The first Spanish commandant at Mobile was Jose de Espeleta,
followed by perhaps a dozen others. Among them were the well-known
Folch, Lonzos, and Osorno. Perez was the last.

" United States President James Madison directed Major General
James Wilkerson to take Mobile in the spring of 1813. Commandant
Cayetano Perez did not have adequate resources to resist and after
negotiations surrendered the fort on April 15, 1813, without blood Qhed.

During the French, British, and Spanish rule, Fort Charlotte had

been the important hub of Mobile life, but now that Florida had become a
part of the United States, and Mobile was growing up around the Fort,
there was a feeling that it should be torn down and the ground be
converted into city lots.
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Ww.Warner Floyd, Executive Director

ORGANIZATION

Alabama Historical Commission

DATE

Feb. 24, 1969

STREET AND NUMBER:

ence Street

CITY OR TOWN:

STATE CODE

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and c}glrt,i(yltbat it has been

evaluated according to.the_criiteri;a an;:l prgcedure§ set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:

National [  State [] Local [

Title Chairman, Alabama Historical

Commission, SLO

Date _February 28, 1969

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register. ;

oe? /Z//ML Vi ll,

Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Pgeservation

Date __May 21, 1969

ATTEST:
1}ty

Keeper of The Natfonal Registe7 ‘

Date
-~
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FORT CONDE-CHARLOTTE

8. Significance

o “Although Major-General Bernard on December 23, 1817, made

‘?0' report to the U. S. chief engineer that of all the forts in Louisiana
Fort Charlotte was the only one well built, and recommended it be
retained, the sale of the old Fort was authorized by act of Congress,
April 20, 1818. The Fort remained garrisoned until October

1820 when the sale actually took place.’ Much of the property going
to a syndicate, calling itself the Mobile Lot Company.

Construction, demolition, and new construction on the
demolished site of the fort between 1820 and 1960 obliterated
even the exact location of the fort. Archaeological excavations
authorized by the State Highway Department coordinated by the Department
of Anthropology, University of Alabama, have reidentified the site,
established most of the outer boundaries of the structure, and
uncovered many artifacts particularly those belonging to the period
between 1750 and 1800.
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9. PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION tinciude Original & Present Condition)

Fort Conde'-Charlotte, originally constructed by the French in
1717, was basically a rectilinear structure with four corner bastions. It
was constructed of brick and measured approximately 360' from bastion point
to bastion point. Its walls were 20 feet in height and protected by a dry
moat, log fence and a glacis. The outer limits of this glacis measured
approximately 590 feet from point to point. The only access to the interior
of the fort was by a gate through the North curtain wall. Inside the fort
were two soldiers' barracks, quarters for the commanding officer and the
command post. Three of the curtain walls, the south, east, and north, were
casemated while the west curtain wall had half casemates. There were three
water wells within the walls and two of the bastions contained semi-sub-
terranean structures. A powder magazine was located in the southeast bastion
and the northwest bastion held a bakery. In the center of the fort was a
parade area. This description is documented in Peter Hamilton's book,
COLONTAL MOBILE and is shown on various maps held by the Library of Congress
and the archives in Paris, France and the archives in Seville, Spain.
Presently, an archeological excavation sponsored by the Alabama State
Highway Department is being conducted on the site. This investigation has
uncovered the foundation of the southwest bastion, the moat outside and
the foundations of the casemates along the south curtain wall. Evidence has
been located revealing the half casemates along the west curtain wall,
the well located near the mouth of the south bastion and the soldiers'
barracks paralleling the west curtain wall. Modern construction at the
corner of Royal and Church Streets including the Mobile City Hall (C.1848) and
the Mobile County Courthouse (C.1958) have eliminated or made (CONTINUED)----

10. STATEMENT OF S|GN|F|CANCE {History, Personages, Events, Sources of Information, etc.)

The Bay of Mobile was first discovered in 1519 by Pineda and was
visited and mapped by Bazares, DeSoto and other Spaniards and claimed by them
for Charles V, and it remained for the French led by Iberville and Bienville
to move into and settle the area. Though the Mississippi had been discovered
almost a century before the French settled in 1702 at Twenty Seven Mile Bluff
on the Alabama River north of the present City of Mobile. This settlement
provided them ready access and control of the area, and they began diplomatic
relations and trade with the indians in this river's basin. That town site,
selected in 1702 was abandoned in 1709, and a new town of Mobile and a new
Fort Louis, later to be known as Fort Conde'-Charlotte, were constructed by
Iberville on the present site of the City of Mobile. Mobile as the capital
of the French Louisiana Empire, became the focal point of all French activity
in the Alabama and the Tombecbe' River Basins, as well as the lower Mississippi
River basin from 1699 to 1722.

In 1713 Antoine Crozat leased the colony and placed De La Mothe
Cadillac, the founder of Detroit, in the position of Govermor, but in 1722
the capital was moved to New Orleans, and Mobile fell into relative obscurity.
Though no longer the capital, Mobile still offered protection for the eastern
flank of the French Louisiana Empire, which was constantly being threatened
by the Spanish in Florida and the English in the Carolinas and Georgia.

(CONTINUED)
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And/Or HISTORIC
3. LOCATION STATE| Alabama
COUNTY| Mobile
4, MAP SOURCE| Donald A. Harris

DATE| 8-19-68
SCALE| 6' = 1"

{Indicate Property Limits Of District, Site, Building, Structure Or Object And Indicate North Arrow)

The attached map has been drawn from sketches made during
the archeological excavations on the Fort Conde' site. It only
illustrates work done as of May, 1968.

The second attached map is a copy of a 1770 British rendition
of Ft. Conde-Charlotte superimposed upon a 1968 steet plan of the
City of Mobile which further shows the proposed right of way and con-
struction of the Interstate 10 dual tunnels under the Mobile Ribver.
Note that the portal to said tunnels is located some 170 feet east of
the West edge of the outer defense wall and moat of the fort. If said
portal were moved 175 feet west then the fort site could be essentially
saved and reconstructed in its original location. As to that portion
lying south of Church Street.
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CONTINUED FROM PAGE 2 - - - # 9,

inaccessible some of the fort and its accompanying structures, but
enough remains to provide a good impression of the plan of the fort.

CONTINUED FROM PAGE 2 - - - i 10.

In 1763 the Colony was ceded to England by the Treaty of
Paris. The British held the Fort until 1780 when it was attacked and
succumbed to a Spanish expeditionary force led by Galvez. The Spanish
maintained control of the Fort until 1813 when General Wilkerson with
an Army from New Orleans laid siege and forced the Spanish to surrender
and withdraw to Pensacola. 1In 1820 the Fort, no longer considered
militarily significant by the U. S. Government was sold to the Mobile
lot company and subsequently destroyed for the development of that
property.




